
CASE 967-S-19 
SUPPLEMENTAL MEMORANDUM #4 
August 21, 2020

 
Petitioners:  Bruce and Brody Block, d.b.a., Block Field Tiling, LLC 

 
Request:  Authorize a Contractor’s Facility with Outdoor Storage and Outdoor  

Operations as a Special Use in the AG-1 Agriculture Zoning District. 
 
Location: A 35-acre tract in the South Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 7, 

Township 17 North, Range 11 East of the Third Principal Meridian in Ayers 
Township with an address of 2460 CR 400N, Broadlands. 

 
Site Area: Special Use Permit Area is five acres 
 
Time Schedule for Development:  Already in use 

 
Prepared by: Susan Burgstrom, Senior Planner 

John Hall, Zoning Administrator 
 

STATUS 
 
New information was received on August 20, 2020 from IEPA in response to Susan Burgstrom’s FOIA 
request. 
 
IEPA COMPLIANCE – AMENDED 
 
The following evidence has been added starting as Item 9.G.6 regarding IEPA compliance: 
 

(6)       On August 20, 2020, Planner Susan Burgstrom received a reply to her August 12, 2020, 
FOIA request to the IEPA.  Highlights of the reply include the following: 
a.         Jennifer O’Hearn of the IEPA completed an Open Dump Inspection of the Block 

property on February 11, 2020.  The results of that inspection were summarized in a 
letter to Bruce Block dated May 6, 2020.  The letter to Mr. Block stated that four 
violations were observed that had been observed in previous inspections of his 
property on August 3, 2016; December 14, 2016; May 16, 2017; September 21, 
2017; April 20, 2018; December 10, 2018; and November 1, 2019.   
(a) Environmental Protection Act (415 ILCS 5) violation 21(a) continuing since 

August 11, 2015 is to “cause or allow the open dumping of any waste.” 
 
(b) Violation 21(e) continuing since August 11, 2015 is to “dispose, treat, store 

or abandon any waste, or transport any waste into this State for disposal, 
treatment, storage or abandonment, except at a site or facility which meets 
the requirements of this Act and of regulations and standards thereunder.” 

 
(c) Violation 21(p)(1) continuing since August 11, 2015 is to “cause or allow 

the open dumping of any waste in a manner which results in…litter.” 
 
(d) Violation 21(p)(7) continuing since August 3, 2016 is to “cause or allow the 

open dumping of any waste in a manner which results in…deposition of: (i) 
general construction or demolition debris as defined in Section 3.160(a) of 
this Act; or (ii) clean construction or demolition debris as defined in Section 
3.160(b) of this Act.” 
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b.         Bruce Block had been present for the inspection. 
 

c.         The following summary is excerpted from pages 2 and 3 of the Open Dump 
Inspection Report: 

“In summary, much activity has occurred at the site. Around 30 cubic yards of 
brick was crushed from a former pile of brick. Around 40 cubic yards of asphalt 
was crushed. Around 30 cubic yards of concrete was apparently newly 
crushed.  Around 5 cubic yards of lumber and plastic were removed. Around 10 
cubic yards of concrete and asphalt were removed. Around 20 cubic yards of 
brick and concrete and 30 cubic yards of soil, brick and concrete were 
removed.  A total of 125 cubic yards is estimated to have either been crushed or 
removed at the site. 

 
Much new material was observed including about 15 cubic yards of new 
painted concrete, unpainted concrete and soil, 40 cubic yards new bricks and 30 
cubic yards new bricks, some with paint. A total estimated 85 cubic yards of 
new material came to the site. 

 
However, north and east of the barn show no signs of improvement  with 
around 120 cubic yards of concrete that have been at the site since August 11, 
2015.  To the west of the grain bins a couple hundred cubic yards of ground 
asphalt that were observed previously have not left the site.” 

 
d.         The report also listed the kind of tests that need to be made on any painted concrete 

or painted brick to confirm that such materials may be used as fill  materials.  
Painted materials that fail those tests must be disposed of at a permitted landfill. 

 
e.         The report also recounts the following conversation between Jennifer O’Hearn and 

Bruce Block: 
“I asked Mr. Block how many tons of material he is processing and if he had 
records for what he has processed.  He said he processed around 1,000 tons in 
2019 and he does not have records for what he processed.  I said the more 
records you keep showing material is not just sitting at the property, the 
better.  I also said material north and east of the shed needs to be processed, as 
it could be considered open dumped because it has been sitting there, 
unprocessed for multiple years. He did say they had been better recycling 
material at the front of the property.  I said the large pile of asphalt must be 
gone within four years of when it arrived onsite and 25% of the asphalt must be 
removed per year.  He said some of the asphalt has already left the site.  Finally, 
I asked him if he had an IEPA Bureau of Air Permit for the crusher.  Mr. Block 
said he just obtained a ROSS permit for the 2018 model Rebel Crusher which 
he said had anti-pollution equipment on it. He said the BOA ROSS permit ID# 
is 091800AAA.” 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A IEPA FOIA response received August 20, 2020, with attachments: 

• Letter from Todd Marvel with IEPA to Bruce Block dated May 6, 2020 
• Evaluation Report by IEPA Bureau of Land dated February 11, 2020 
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